1949

# Hotel Utah Company v. R. H. Dalrymple, Otto Weisley, H. Fred Egan and Laundry Workers Local Union No. 316 : Brief of Petitioners

Utah Supreme Court

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

The petitioner herein, Hotel Utah Company, a corporation, with its principal place of business at Salt Lake City, Utah, heretofore filed its petition with this Honorable Court for Writ of Certiorari to review the proceedings and order of the Utah Labor Relations Board.

On the 15th day of June, 1948, the Laundry Workers Local Union No. 316 filed its petition for investigation and Certification of Representatives as provided for by Title 49-1-17, Subsection (c), Utah Code Annotated 1943 (Tr. 157). This petition alleged that the unit appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining was the production workers engaged in laundry work; that said unit was to exclude clerical workers and supervisors with the power to hire and fire.

The Utah Labor Relations Board caused a notice to be served upon this petitioner, notifying it that a hearing would be held on the 25th day of June, 1948, at the State Capitol at Salt Lake City, Utah (Tr. 122).

On said day a hearing was conducted by the Honorable Daniel Edwards, as examiner. That at said hearing said Daniel Edwards granted a motion to continue the hearing, and made and entered his order, setting the matter for hearing on the 12th day of July, 1948. That on said 12th day of July, 1948, a hearing was held in conformance with said notice.

On the 20th of July, 1948, the Utah Labor Relations Board made and entered its order (Tr. 99) determining that a unit for the purpose of collective bargaining consisted of the following:

“All laundry production workers, and exclude clerical workers and supervisors with the right to hire and fire.”

This order further provided that a cross-check of respondent's payroll record be made from June 1, 1948

to and including June 15, 1948, with evidence of Union designation by employees of Hotel Utah Company in the unit herein to be determined by the Board; it further provided that said cross-check be made on the 23rd day of August, 1948.

On the 30th day of July, 1948, and before said cross-check was made by a representative of the Utah Labor Relations Board, the Hotel Utah Company protested and objected to the said order (Tr. 69). It is objected to the order upon the following grounds:

1. That there is evidence in the record to the effect that the employees executing the designations or applications known as Exhibit 1 in the record, did not know the purport of what they executed or signed. 2. That it has come to our attention within the past four (4) days that employees have advised us that when they executed Exhibit 1 they did not know that it was a designation of the Union as their representative; further that they were not told the real reason for the signing of Exhibit 1.

On the 5th day of August, 1948 (Tr. 67), the Utah Labor Relations Board issued a certification designating the Laundry Workers Local Union No. 316 to be the sole, collective bargaining representatives with respect to rates of pay, hours of labor and other conditions of employment with respect to the following described unit:

“All laundry production employees, and exclude clerical workers and supervisors with power to hire and fire.”

On the 10th day of August, 1948, this petitioner made a motion to vacate and set aside the certification (Tr. 61). This motion in substance provided that the method of cross-check was not the suitable method to be used to ascertain the representative of the employees as provided for by Section 49-1-17, Sub-section (c). That the suitable method under the facts in this case in determining the representatives should be by secret ballot of the employees. Section 49-1-17, Subsection (c) provides as follows:

(c) "Whenever a question affecting intrastate commerce or the orderly operation of industry arises concerning the representation of employees, the board may investigate such controversy and certify to the parties, in writing, the name or names of the representatives that have been designated or selected. In any such investigation, the board shall provide for an appropriate hearing upon due notice, either in conjunction with a proceeding under section 11 or otherwise, *and may take a secret ballot of employees*, or utilize any other suitable method to ascertain such representatives." (Italics ours)

On the 20th day of August, 1948, the Utah Labor Relations Board denied the motion to vacate and set aside the certification (Tr. 59).

On the 1st day of November, 1948, the Laundry Workers Local Union No. 316 filed a charge with the Utah Labor Relations Board, alleging among other things that the Hotel Utah had refused to bargain with the Laundry Workers Local Union No. 316 (Tr. 1).



The Laundry Workers Local Union No. 316 further alleged that it was the representative of the majority of respondent's employees in a collective bargaining unit.

Pursuant to the charge, the Utah Labor Relations Board on the 18th day of November, 1948, issued its complaint alleging that the Hotel Utah Company had refused to bargain collectively and in good faith with Laundry Workers Local Union No. 316.

The Hotel Utah Company (Tr. 12) filed its answer to the complaint. The Hotel Utah Company in its answer alleged as follows, in part:

"4. In further answering said complaint, this respondent alleges that it has refused to bargain with Laundry Workers Local Union No. 316, for the reason that the said Laundry Workers Union is not the duly authorized bargaining representative of any of the employees of the respondent company; particularly, it is not the bargaining representative as provided for by the laws of the State of Utah, with respect to a purported appropriate unit as referred to in the proceedings heretofore held in this cause. That the unit purportedly found by the board to be an appropriate unit, is not, in fact, an appropriate unit for the purpose of collective bargaining.

5. This respondent further alleges that the Utah Labor Relations Board, in violation of the laws of the State of Utah, refused to permit the employees involved to express their choice of bargaining representatives by secret ballot.

6. This respondent alleges that under the circumstances and facts in this case, the only appropriate and fair means of determining the desires of the employees was by the holding of an election, thereby affording the opportunity to the employees to express their desires without any chance of coercion, intimidation, or influence of any kind."

A hearing was held with respect to this matter on the 6th day of December, 1948; the Trial Examiner, Daniel Edwards, one of the Commissioners of the Utah Labor Relations Board, presiding.

On the 5th day of January, 1949, the Trial Examiner, Daniel Edwards, made and filed his examiner's report, findings of fact and recommended order (Tr. 19 to 21). The examiner recommended as follows:

"1. That the Board order the Respondent, Hotel Utah Company, to cease and desist from any further unfair labor practice as set forth in Section 49-1-16, Subsection (1), Paragraph d), Utah Code Annotated, 1943, as amended.

2. That the Respondent enter into collective bargaining with the Complainant as it relates to rates of pay, hours of labor and other conditions of employment within fifteen (15) days from this date.

3. That the Respondent notify the Board of its compliance with the Board's Order."

Within the time required by law, that is, the 15th day of January, 1949, the Hotel Utah Company filed its objections to the intermediate report of the Trial

Examiner and his findings of fact and recommended order (Tr. 26 and 27).

The Hotel Utah Company, among other things, made the following objections to said report, findings of fact and recommended order:

“There is no evidence to substantiate the findings of fact as contained in paragraph five of said findings of fact; further there is no evidence to support the Board’s action in determining that the unit as set forth in paragraph five of said findings of fact, constitutes and is an appropriate unit for the purpose of collective bargaining; it is the position of said respondent that the unit as determined by the Board does not constitute an appropriate unit for the purpose of collective bargaining as provided for by the laws of the State of Utah.

“That the certification, as referred to in paragraph 6, is void and has no force and effect and designates that said certification was based upon applications and designations by employees; that said employees were not fully apprized of the signature of executing said applications and designations; that because of the evidence in this cause, an election should have been held, affording the employees the right to express their opinions, without any interference from anyone. The evidence clearly shows that the Union was afraid of an election. The record further discloses that the only appropriate method of determining the representative should have been by an election.

“In view of the fact that there has been an improper determination of an appropriate unit for the purpose of collective bargaining, it can-

not be said that this respondent has refused to bargain as provided by the laws of the State of Utah.”

On the 27th day of January, 1949, the Utah Labor Relations Board made and entered its order (Tr. 32), which is as follows:

“The Utah Labor Relations Board, after consideration of a statement of Respondent’s Objections to Intermediate Report of Trial Examiner, Finds of Fact and Recommended Order, *concur*s with the Trial Examiner’s Report issued January 5, 1949, and hereby orders: (Italics ours)

1. That Respondent, Hotel Utah Company, cease and desist from any further unfair labor practice as set forth in Section 49-1-16, Subsection (1), Paragraph (d), Utah Code Annotated 1943, as amended.

2. That Respondent enter into collective bargaining with the Complainant as it relates to rates of pay, hours of labor and other conditions of employment within fifteen (15) days from this date.

3. That the Respondent notify the Board of its compliance with the Board’s Order.”

Attention is called to the order of the Board in which it states that it *concur*s with the Trial Examiner’s report. It does not adopt the order of the Board; and the Board has not made any findings of fact and conclusions of law as required by Title 49-1-18, Subsection (c). The order of the Board (Tr. 32) is the only document issued by the Board with reference to this matter.

On February 1, 1949, this petitioner, Hotel Utah Company, filed its petition for writ of certiorari with the Clerk of the Supreme Court of the State of Utah.

## ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

1. The order of the Utah Labor Relations Board, dated the 27th day of January, 1949, is void in that it is not supported by any Findings of Fact, as provided for in Title 49-1-18, Subsection C, Utah Code Annotated 1943.

2. The Board erred in directing a cross check of the Company's payroll as the suitable method to ascertain the representative of a majority of the employees.

3. The Board erred in determining that the unit appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining was "all laundry production workers."

4. The Utah Labor Relations Board erred in providing in its order that Hotel Utah Company cease and desist from any further unfair labor practice as set forth in Section 49-1-16, Subsection 1, paragraph (d), Utah Code Annotated 1943, as amended.

5. The Utah Labor Relations Board did not have the authority to issue any order or make any findings.

## ARGUMENT

### ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR NO. 1

THE ORDER OF THE UTAH LABOR RELATIONS BOARD, DATED THE 27th DAY OF JANUARY, 1949, IS VOID IN THAT IT IS NOT SUPPORTED BY ANY FIND-

INGS OF FACT AS PROVIDED FOR IN TITLE 49-1-18, SUBSECTION C, UTAH CODE ANNOTATED 1943.

Title 49-1-18 provides in part as follows:

“ . . . . then the Board shall state its findings of fact and shall issue and cause to be served on such person an order to cease and desist from such unfair labor practice, . . . . ”

The statute is clear and mandatory that the Utah Labor Relations Board shall state its findings of fact in each case.

The record in this case discloses the fact that no findings of fact or conclusions of law were made or entered by the Utah Labor Relations Board.

It is the position of this petitioner that it is mandatory upon the Board to make findings of fact upon all the material issues presented by the pleadings and necessary for a proper disposition of the case.

Title 49-1-18 further provides:

“ . . . . The findings of the Board as to the facts, if supported by evidence, shall be conclusive . . . . ”

By reason of the fact that no findings have been made or entered in this cause, this petitioner is not given an opportunity to assail the findings as unsupported by the evidence.

The petitioner contends there were material issues presented by the pleadings in this cause, and that the disposition of the same was necessary for a proper disposition of the case; therefore, findings of fact were necessary with reference to these material issues. The petitioner will hereinafter set forth facts and circum-

stances in the following assignments of error that justify the statement set forth herein, that there were material issues presented by the pleadings in this cause, and that the disposition of the same was necessary for proper disposition of the case.

## ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR NO. 2

THE BOARD ERRED IN DIRECTING A CROSS CHECK OF THE COMPANY'S PAYROLL AS THE SUITABLE METHOD TO ASCERTAIN THE REPRESENTATIVE OF A MAJORITY OF THE EMPLOYEES.

Sec. 49-1-17, subsection (c), Utah Code Annotated 1943, provides in part as follows:

“ . . . . In any such investigation, the board shall provide for an appropriate hearing upon due notice, either in conjunction with a proceeding under Section 11 Sec. 49-1-18) (insertion ours), and may take a secret ballot of employees, or utilize any other suitable method to ascertain such representatives.”

It will be noted that under the provisions of Section 49-1-17, subsection (c) that the Board may take a secret ballot of employees or utilize any other suitable method.

It would seem that the legislature, by specifically providing for an election, intended that this method should be used, unless there was some reason for not doing so; it then provided for any other suitable method.

Certainly there is no better method of ascertaining the desires of employees, than by an election. It is a quick, expeditious way of ascertaining employee's desires.

We are sure that it is not necessary before this Court to argue that the American system of elections, to determine the desires of its citizens, is a proper procedure.

Further, we do not think it necessary to argue against the substitution of other methods, to take its place.

We cannot understand why the Board in this case denied to the employees of the Hotel Utah Company the right to express their desires by a free and unmolested election.

The Board (Tr. 67) certified the Union as the bargaining representative by comparing authorization forms submitted by the Union, with the payroll of the Company. The Board found that a majority had so designated.

List of employees as submitted shows thirty-nine in employment (Tr. 70). Authorization cards (Tr. 71 to 93, inc.) show twenty-one employees of those on payroll had designated the Union as their representative.

The record shows that the Union had a majority of three. Two people of this group could change the result.

It is interesting to note that the authorizations (Tr. 71 to 93, inc.) were not the first obtained by the Union.

Previous authorizations were received (Tr. 124 to 156, inc.) by the Board at the time of filing the Petition for Investigation on June 15, 1948 (Tr. 157).



The subsequent authorizations were introduced at the hearing on June 24, 1948, as Exhibit 1 (Tr. 165).

It will be observed that there were thirty-two applications or authorizations originally filed as Exhibit A. Further, that when Exhibit 1 was filed, only twenty-one names matched those of the payroll.

This petitioner objected to the introduction of Exhibit 1 (Tr. 199).

The Union refused to consent to an election (Tr. 195).

With only a majority of three, it is easily understandable why the Union was afraid to permit the employees to freely express their choice. Upon reading the transcript it is clear that the employees did not know exactly the purport of what they signed (Tr. 192).

Without question, the only reason given to the employees to sign Exhibit 1, was that it would strengthen the case if they were signed before a witness (Tr. 192).

It can easily be seen why the company is not satisfied with the method used by the Utah Labor Relations Board in ascertaining the desires of the employees with reference to their bargaining representatives.

For the Board to substitute a cross-check for the election procedure under the circumstances in this case does not make sense.

One of the main objectives of the Utah Labor Relations Act, without question, is to encourage the practice

and procedure of collective bargaining through employee representatives of their own choosing.

One of the main obstacles to such collective bargaining is uncertainty or disagreement concerning who has been designated by the employees as their representatives. Section 49-1-17, Subsection (c), Utah Code Annotated 1943, is designed to remove this obstacle by creating machinery for the determination of such representatives.

It is very evident that the employer was not satisfied in using a method of cross-check under the circumstances.

To effectuate the policies of the act, that is, to encourage collective bargaining, the Board should use the method of determining the bargaining representatives that would erase from anybody's mind any question as to the desires of the employees.

In this case there was a question in the employer's mind as to whether the authorization cards actually represented the true desires of the employees. The reluctance of the Union to submit to any election further created a suspicion, and naturally so in the employer's mind.

At the hearing of June 24, 1948, Mr. Harter and Mr. McEwan testified pertaining to the procurement of Exhibit 1. It will be remembered that Exhibit 1 is the authorization slips that were procured the night before the hearing of June 24, 1948, and which were procured in

the interpretation of this petitioner without advising the employees the purport of the authorization slips.

Section 49-1-17, Subsection (c) is identical with Title 29, Section 159, Subsection (c), United States Code Annotated.

The National Labor Relations Board's usual practice, initiated in *Matter of The Cudahy Packing Co. and United Packinghouse Workers of America, etc.*, 13 N. L. R. B. 526, is to direct an election in a representation proceeding if the parties are in doubt or disagreement regarding the wishes of the employees even if there is only one labor organization claiming the status of majority representative. This was done even though authorization cards showed a substantial majority in favor of the Union.

The National Labor Relations Board has pointed out in this case that a certification looks to the initiation of collective bargaining and that bargaining relations would be more satisfactory from the beginning if the doubt and disagreement of the parties regarding the wishes of the employees is, as far as possible, eliminated. The Board further stated in substance that even though they had in the past certified representatives without an election upon a showing of the sort here made, they were persuaded by their experience that the policies of the act would best be effectuated upon the question of representation by resolving in an election by secret ballot. It has become clear that workers see secret ballots as the most democratic method of select-

ing their representatives, free from the coercion of their employer or the Union seeking to organize them.

Since 1939 the Board has adhered faithfully to the policy expressed in the Cudahy Packing Case.

There are certain fundamental standards which the Board is required to observe in the effectuation of the legislative purpose of the Utah Labor Relations Act; one of which is the traditional rule against the presumption of liability or bad faith. See *Boeing Airplane Co. vs. N. L. R. B.*, 140 Fed. (2d) 423.

Therefore, there should have been no fear in the Board's mind whatsoever in permitting an election to be held and the employees given the opportunity of free expression. The Labor Board has conducted many hearings and they are well grounded in the procedure of conducting free and proper elections.

It will be said, of course, that the Board in its discretion may adopt any method that it seems suitable to effectuate the purposes of the Act. However, when objection is made to the method of a cross-check and another suitable method may be adopted which should be acceptable to all parties, we feel it is abuse of discretion to adopt the method of cross-check.

In reviewing all the facts in this case, together with the policy adopted by the National Labor Relations Board based upon its past experience, it seems without question that the Board abused its discretion in at-

tempting to please the Union by only doing that which the Union requested.

We feel that the Board must realize that there are other parties to a controversy in matters of this kind, other than a labor organization. Everything that the Union requested was granted, regardless of the facts and circumstances.

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