1949

# Hotel Utah Company v. R. H. Dalrymple, Otto Weisley, H. Fred Egan and Laundry Workers Local Union No. 316 : Brief in Behalf of Defendants

Utah Supreme Court

# In the Supreme Court of the State of Utah

---

HOTEL UTAH COMPANY, a corporation,

*Petitioner,*

vs.

R. H. DALRYMPLE, OTTO WEIS-  
LEY and H. FRED EGAN constitut-  
ing the Utah Labor Relations Board,  
and LAUNDRY WORKERS LOCAL  
UNION NO. 316,

*Defendants.*

Case No.  
7290

---

## BRIEF IN BEHALF OF DEFENDANTS

---

### STATEMENT

The Utah Labor Relations Board certified the Laundry Workers Local Union No. 316 the collective bargaining agent for all of petitioner's employees in its laundry unit. Thereafter the petitioner ignored such certification, and refused to bargain; whereupon unfair labor practices were charged against petitioner. The Board, after hearing such charges, thereupon formally ordered petitioner to bargain; petitioner again ignored the Board and sued for a writ of review in this Court.

At the outset we desire to expressly invite the Court's attention to an odd situation in a labor controversy. There were at least thirty-five laundry employees of Petitioner involved in this matter, in addition to its executive and supervisory personnel. The case was prolonged over quite a period of time, and divided into three separate hearings, viz., June 24, 1948, July 12, 1948, and December 6th, 1948. Yet not a single witness was called to the witness stand by Petitioner, except Louis H. Callister (attorney for Petitioner), and he quite naturally and obviously put into the record the precipate of Petitioner's bitter opposition to the Board's decision in this matter. Mr. Callister testified (Tr. 16, Dec. 6 hearing 1948), as follows:

MR. CALLISTER: No, we weren't crossed up at all. As I told you heretofore, there were two reasons why we would not bargain. The first is that the unit was not the appropriate unit for the purpose of collective bargaining *because it was contrary to the laws and practices of the industry particularly of the Hotel Utah Company*; and second, that the employees were deprived of their right to indicate their desire by secret ballot." (Emphasis ours.)

Thus it appears that the Petitioner is intent on pre-empting the Board in a determination of which employees shall constitute a collective bargaining unit, thus ignoring the welfare of its employees and in violation of the statute, which says the Board shall decide *in each case* in order to insure the employees full benefits of self organization, etc. (Sub-section (b) of Section 49-1-17

of the Act.) Thus they upset craft unionism; furthermore, Petitioner strives to substitute its judgment in place of the Board's judgment in selecting the appropriate manner of ascertaining what collective bargaining agent, if any, Petitioner's laundry employees have chosen.

It would seem perfectly obvious that, if there was even a little doubt respecting whom Petitioner's laundry employees desired to represent them, or the manner in which such employees desired to make their wishes known, the Petitioner would have had at least some of its employees testify at the hearing. And on the other hand, even if there was a little doubt that the usual craft unit was inappropriate to the operations of Petitioner's hotel, then certainly, in that event, Petitioner would have called one of its executives to the witness stand and placed at least some evidence in the record touching the merits of a contention it so long and vigorously proclaims.

We shall treat Petitioner's assignments of error in the order in which they appear in its brief.

#### PETITIONER'S ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR NO. 1

"The order of the Utah Labor Relations Board, dated the 27th day of January, 1949, is void in that it is not supported by any Findings of Fact, as provided for in Title 49-1-18, Subsection C, Utah Code Annotated 1943."

In the unfair labor practices procedure in this matter the union filed *charges* before the Board alleging 1, that the Utah Hotel Company is engaged in the general hotel business in Salt Lake City, and has engaged in and

is engaging in unfair labor practices. 2, that the union is now and ever since August 5, 1948 has been and is the duly authorized collective bargaining representative of respondents employees in a collective bargaining unit appropriate for the purposes of bargaining with employer respecting hours, wages and conditions of employment. 3, that the Utah Hotel Company has deliberately and wilfully refused to bargain with the union and that on several occasions the union has endeavored to bargain with the Utah Hotel Company in such behalf, but that the company continued to refuse or recognize the union as the bargaining agent of its laundry employees. 4, that the company has interfered and restrained its employees in their rights guaranteed in Section 49-1-15 of Utah Labor Relations Act. 5, that the Company has dominated and interfered with the affairs of the union. 6, that the Company has discriminated against certain of its laundry employees. 7, *that such unfair labor practices on the part of the Company are unfair labor practices affecting intrastate commerce and the orderly operation of business within the meaning of the Utah Labor Relations Act.*

The union therefor prayed the board to issue its complaint in the premises. On the 16th day of November, 1948, the board issued its complaint stating: 1. *That the Company is a corporation of the State of Utah and does business in Salt Lake City.* 2. That the Company is an employer within the meaning of the Utah Labor Relations Act. 3. That the union is a labor organization within the meaning of said Act. 4. That respondent has re-

fused to bargain collectively with the union in violation of the Board's certification of August 5, 1948, and in violation of the Act.

The answer of the Company admits paragraphs 1 and 2 of the complaint and admits that it has refused to bargain with the union, and as an affirmative defense, sets out in its answer that the union is not the authorized bargaining representative of the Company's employees in the laundry unit, and that the unit found by the Board is not an appropriate unit, and that the method of selecting the bargaining unit on behalf of the Company's laundry employees as found by the Board was wrong.

The hearing to determine the issues respecting the unfair labor charges was held pursuant to notice of the Board on the 6th day of December, 1948, such hearing was conducted by the Honorable Daniel Edwards, a Commissioner of the Utah Labor Relations Board, who presided at the hearing. Commissioner Edwards, who conducted the hearing, made and entered the following findings of fact:

1. That Hotel Utah Company, hereinafter referred to as Respondent, is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Utah and as such is doing business in Salt Lake City, Utah.

2. That Respondent is an employer within the meaning of Title 49-1-10, Sub-section (2), Utah Code Annotated 1943, as amended.

3. That Laundry Workers Local Union No. 316, hereinafter referred to as Complainant, is a labor organization within the meaning of Title



49-1-10, sub-section (5), as amended.

4. That a hearing was held before the Honorable Daniel Edwards on June 24, 1948, on a Petition for Investigation and Certification of Representatives in the matter of case No. 615.

5. That the Utah Labor Relations Board found that an appropriate collective bargaining unit consisted as follows:

All laundry production workers and exclude clerical workers and supervisors with power to hire and fire.

6. That the Utah Labor Relations Board certified the Petitioner as the legally selected and designated agent of the employees of Respondent in the above described unit for the purpose of collective bargaining on August 5, 1948.

7. That Complainant and Respondent did meet on several occasions but did not enter into collective bargaining.

8. That Respondent did refuse to bargain with Complainant on the grounds: (a) That the unit found by the Board was not an appropriate unit. (b) That the Board's method of determining the collective bargaining representative, if any, was not in conformity with the Utah Labor Relations Act.

9. That Respondent did refuse to bargain.

Thereafter, on the 27th day of January 1949, the Utah Labor Relations Board acting through Commissioners Daniel Edwards, H. Fred Egan, and R. H. Dalrymple concurred in Commissioner Edwards findings of fact and

conclusions, that is to say, agreed to and adopted such findings of fact and conclusions and issued its order requiring the Company (1) to cease and desist from any further Unfair Labor Practices, (2) to enter into collective bargaining with the union, (3) and notify the Board of compliance on the part of the Company, with the Board's order.

Petitioner protests that there are no legal findings of fact in this case. Let us examine this issue; Subsection (c) of Section 49-1-18 of the Utah Labor Relations Act, reads as follows:

... "Thereafter in its discretion, the board, upon notice, may take further testimony or hear argument. If upon all the testimony taken the board shall be of the opinion that any person named in the complaint has engaged in or is engaging in any such unfair labor practice, then the board shall state its findings of fact and shall issue and cause to be served on such person an order to cease and desist from such unfair labor practice, and to take such affirmative action, including reinstatement of employees with or without back pay as will effectuate the policies of this act. Such order may further require such person to make reports from time to time showing the extent to which it has complied with the order. If upon all the testimony taken the board shall be of the opinion that no person named in the complaint has engaged in or is engaging in any such unfair labor practice, then the board shall state its findings of fact and shall issue an order dismissing the said complaint."

There can be no doubt that full, separately stated

and comprehensive findings of fact were made by Commissioner Edwards. Nor can there be any doubt that such findings of fact are agreed to and concurred in by the other two commissioners. (See order of the Board January 27, 1949.)

It is far fetched and remote for petitioner to contend that the Board should adopt any particular method of stating the findings of fact with any sort of meticulous exactitude, for the reason that, all that is contemplated by the section of the statute above referred to, *is that the Board state its findings of fact, issue its order to cease and desist, and take affirmative action.* The manner, method, form, and fashion in which, or time when the Board shall state its findings of fact is not mentioned by the statute. Indeed the board in this respect has a very wide latitude and discretion under the statute. See Teamsters Local Union No. 222 and the Industrial Commission vs. Strevell Patterson Hardware Co., 174 P2d 164, in which case the court says:

“Section 49-1-18 U.C.A. 1943 required the Board to make findings of fact after testimony taken on complaint that any person has engaged in unfair labor practices. It does not provide for any particular type of findings of fact, and it is our opinion that in the absence of such instruction from the legislature, findings of fact which would be sufficient to sustain a judgment or order of a court will be sufficient to sustain an order of the Board.”

If findings of fact are stated, the above section of the Act is complied with. The Act doesn't even require

the Board to state its findings of fact in writing. The testimony in the case must be reduced to writing, but there is no such provision of the section prescribing such reduction respecting the Boards findings of fact, hence if the board decides that it wants to adopt the findings of fact of its own member, made pursuant to its own hearing, that is certainly within the discretion of the board. If a board member has made, in the case, full and complete itemized findings of fact, which meets the approval of and are concurred and adopted by the whole Board, why should the Board be put to the extra burden of making findings of fact all over again—that would seem to be nonsense.

The board, under this section of the statute, had the obvious right to adopt and concur in the findings of fact of its own member. Indeed all that can be said respecting any insufficiency of findings of fact, is that the findings as originally found were found by a minority and adopted by a majority of the Board; certainly when the findings of fact were ultimately concurred in by all of the board members, then such findings of fact become the legal, binding, unanimous findings of fact by the Board.

## PETITIONER'S ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR NO. 2

The Board erred in directing a cross-check of the Company's payroll as the suitable method to ascertain the representative of a majority of the employees.

Sub-section (c) of Section 49-1-17 reads as follows:

“Whenever a question affecting intrastate

commerce or the orderly operation of industry arises concerning the representation of employees, the board may investigate such controversy and certify to the parties, in writing, the name or names of the representatives that have been designated or selected. In any such investigation, the board shall provide for an appropriate hearing upon due notice, either in conjunction with a proceeding under Section 11 (18) or otherwise, and *may take a secret ballot of employees, or utilize any other suitable method to ascertain such representatives.* (Emphasis ours.)

It readily appears from the language employed in the above section; that if the Board decides to make an investigation in a representation case, then and in that event, the Board *must* provide for a hearing and that is the only must; the hearing shall, of course, be upon due notice and appropriate. Now the hearing can be in conjunction with an unfair labor practice charge or it can be otherwise. No provision is contained in the section providing for an election. Indeed the legislature has given wide discretion to the Board to determine how and by what method a collective bargaining agent shall be designated. Indeed the Board can use any method suitable to ascertain such designation. It *may* take a secret ballot, but this is only a suggestion on the part of the legislature. The emphasis is on the discretion of the Board to use any suitable method. Assume that the Board would decide, that here the suitable method to designate the representative among the employees, would be by a ballot, there is absolutely nothing in the section that

even squints at when the ballot shall be cast. For all that appears, the ballot can be held before the investigation, or after the investigation, or during the investigation, or before, after or during the hearing. Indeed the discretion of the Board pursuant to this section seems to be very wide and general. The Board is not required to investigate. The only thing *it must do*, if it decides to investigate, is hold a hearing and when the hearing is to be held is not mentioned. We therefore submit, in this case the Board did investigate, the Board did hold a hearing, and the Board did certify in writing the collective bargaining agent, which was the union, that had been designated.

Now if the Board knew, as it surely did, that a collective bargaining representative had already been designated by the laundry employees, and in writing, over the solemn signatures of the respective employees, composing the unit, then why resort to the extra time, ceremony and procedure of affixing a cross to still another designation exhibit. And it is important, if the Court please, to keep in mind in this behalf, that there was not here presented an intramural scrap between two or more labor unions, contending for a bargaining representative. There was only one single labor union involved; so it was merely a question of no union or the Laundry Workers Union. This situation made it relatively easy for the Board to determine whether or not the laundry employees wanted to be unionized; and furthermore, the testimony shows approximately 35 employees comprised the laundry unit (Tr. 6, June 24th

hearing) of the Hotel Utah; that 70% of the employees composing the laundry unit were represented by the union (Tr. 30, June 24th hearing). Mr. Harter, the International Representative, testified when questioned by Mr. Callister: (Tr. 30, June 24th hearing)

BY MR. CALLISTER:

Q. Now Mr. Harter, it was at this meeting last night when individuals were present whose names appear on Petitioner's Proposed Exhibit 1, at that time did you tell them that by signing that authorization that they would strengthen the case so there would be no election?

A. No, I didn't think we would have to have an election anyway, with 100%.

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